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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the General Assembly of Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.S.

A)  Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
1) Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.S. (“the Company™), which comprisé the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the “Communique on Financial Leasing, Factoring and Uniform chart of Accounts which shall
be applied by Finance Companies published in Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861
and Regulation, Communique and Circular on Accounting Policies of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance
Companies and their Financial Statements and announcements published by the Banking Regulation and
Supervision Authority (“BRSA”) together referred as “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation”
and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) for those matters not regulated BRSA Accounting and
Financial Reporting Legislation.

2) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (SIA) which is a part of Turkish
Auditing Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for Independent Auditors (Code of Ethics) published by the POA, together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3) Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Impairment of receivables from lease transactions

In the financial statements of the Company as at 31 December
2022, the total of its receivables from the lease transactions,
which has a share of 74% in the assets, is TL 8,385,814
thousand, and there is a total provision of TL 1,105,539
thousand allocated accordingly.

The Company accounts for its receivables from lease
transactions (receivables) and losses in accordance with TFRS
9 Financial Instruments Standard (Standard).

In this context, the method of making provisions for lease
receivables set aside within the framework of the relevant
legislation of the BRSA, which is explained in detail in the
accounting policy of the Section Two, has been changed by
applying the expected loan/receivable losses model with the
implementation of TFRS 9. The estimate of expected
loan/credit losses should be unbiased, probability-weighted,
and should contain supportable information about estimates of
past events, current conditions, and future economic
conditions.

The Company takes decisions by using important judgments,
interpretations and assumptions while calculating the amount
of impairment for receivables from lease transactions. These
judgments, interpretations and. assumptions are of key
importance in the development of financial models applied to
measure expected credit/receivable losses on receivables from
lease transactions.

In addition, the impairment of lease receivables also includes
important estimates and assumptions regarding the effects of
the Covid-19 outbreak.

A significant portion of the Company's lease receivables
portfolio has been individually evaluated. This issue requires
significant judgments in the calculation of expected
loan/receivable loss provision.

| Failure to fulfill the requirements specified in TFRS 9 poses a
potential risk for the Company. The risk is that the lease
receivables that are impaired cannot be identified and that a
reasonable impairment provision is not set aside for the related
| lease receivables. Therefore, the impairment of these lease
receivables is considered as a key audit matter.

The following procedures were performed as
part of our audit:

The design of the key controls applied by the
Company regarding the classification of lease
receivables, determination of impairment and
impairment calculations has been evaluated
and tested.

In order to determine whether the lease
receivables are impaired or not, taking into
account the effects of the Covid-19 epidemic,
and to determine whether the provision for
impairment of the lease receivables has been
established on time and in accordance with the
standard, receivables examination studies
have been camried out by subjecting the
samples selected from the lease receivables to
audit tests.

Whether the inputs and assumptions are
reasonable, the relationship between the
assumptions, and whether the assumptions are
interconnected and internally consistent,
whether the assumptions assessed with the
impact of Covid-19 are appropriately
reflected, whether market information and
allowances appear reasonable  when
considered together with other assumptions,
including all accounting estimates. Relevant
inputs and assumptions used by management
have been tested for each step of the expected
loan/losses calculation. .

Loss from prior periods have been tested to
identify the completeness and accuracy of key
parameters. The mathematical integrity of
each step of the calculation of the relevant
inputs and expected loan/credit loss
calculations that enable the model to be
applied has been tested.

Within the framework of the discussions with
the Company management, it has been
evaluated whether all other judgments,
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Information on provisions for receivables from lease
transactions in the financial statements is explained in Note 6.

including the basic assumption that forms the
basis for the impairment calculations are
reasonable.

The reasonableness of the provisions made for
the receivables from lease transactions, which
are evaluated individually due to the practice
of the Company, was checked with the
assumptions and estimations, within the
selected examples, together with supportable
data, and evaluated within the framework of
the interviews with the Company
management.

Our experts are involved in all work related to
model and individual valuation assumptions.

In the financial statements of the Company,
the notes in TFRS 9 regarding lease
receivables and related impairment have been
checked.

4) Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Reporting Regulations, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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S) Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the SIA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the SIA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. (The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.)

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102, nothing
has come to our attention that may cause us to believe that the Company’s set of accounts and financial statements
prepared for the period 1 January - 31 December 2022 does not comply with TCC and the provisions of the
Company’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the required
information and documentation with respect to our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sunay Aniktar.

Additional Paragraph for English Translation

BRSA Accounting and Reporting Regulations explained in detail in Section 3 differ from International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board with respect
to the application of inflation accounting. Accordingly, the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements
are not intended to present fairly the financial position, results of operations, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Bank in accordance with IFRS.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

At Jowtho
Sunay Aniktar

Partner

Istanbul, 10 February 2023
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.S.

Statement of financial position {balance sheet) as of 31 December 2022
(Amounts are expressed in terms of Thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated..)

Audited Audited
ASSETS current period prior periad
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC| Tota) TL| FC Total
1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Central Bank 3 4,132 9,231 13 918 3386 4314
Financial Assets st Fair Value Through Profli.oss Jj
L. (Net) ‘ 413. 4 4732 -f - .
i, Derivative Financial Assets 5 q 76,393 83,863 44.490] - 44,490
Financial Assets st Falr Value Through Other
1v. Comprehensive Income (Net) 4 4 o - - E
Financial Assets Measured at
\ Amortised Cost (Net) 4 2,139, 031 5,041,239 7180278 1,044,427 3218591 4,273,018
.1 Factoring Receivables - E N - -
F. 1.t Discounted Factoring Receivables (Met} - e - - .
5.1.2 Other Factoring Receivables 4 L - - -
s.2. Savings Financing Receivables o 4 - - .
5.2.1 From the Savings Fund Pool 4 1 . - -
5.2.2 From Equity - g - - -
5.3 Financing Loans 4 L - - -
5.3.1 Consumer Loans 4 . - -
5.2  Credit Cards 4 - - .
5.33 Instaitment Coimunetcial Loans E - - -
5.4 Lease Transactions {Net) 6 2,16949 5,840, IIZII 8009517 1,075,490 3.833,779 4,909,269
5.4.1 Financial Lease Receivables 3,100,321; 6,700,95400 9,801,261 1,581,629 4,595,504 6,177,133
5.4.2  Operational Lease Receivables 26,67 26,670 1028 B 7128
5.4.3 Uneamed lacome (-) (957,494 (860, 920 (1,818,414 {513,267)] (761,725} {(1,274,992)
Cther Financisl Assets Measured at
5.5 Amortized Cost 4 J . . 2
5.6 Non-Performing Receivables é 300.813' 75 424] 376,297 372518 8910 381,425
5.7 Expected Loss Provisions /Specific Provisions (-) [ (331.3344 (774,205 (1,105,539) (403,578)( (614,098)} (1,017,676)
L Equity Investments 4 E - - -
R Associates (Net) -I o E - - .
.2 Subsidiaries (Net) Bl - - - .
3 Joint Ventures (Net) ua-.| - 4 - - -
VIl Plant, Froperty and Equipment {Net) & 2,189, - 2,189,386 1,041,012 - 1,041,052
VL.  Intangible Assets (Net) 9 19 465| B 19,46 10,927, - 19,927
(X, Investment Properties (Net) - - - -
. Current Tax Assels 18 47,13j - 47,23 45848 - 45,848
X1, Deferred Tax Assets 6 13,443 - 23,443
XIL. Other Assets 10 735,826, 350,979  1,086,80 157356 458,793 616,154
Subtotal 5,615, 5578342 11,194,121 2,368,431 1,690,775 6,059,206
Assets Held for Sale and
IXIII.  Discontinued Operations (Net) 71,2 - .2 71,051 - 71,051
3.1 Assets Held for Sale 62 - 2 77,051 - 77,061
13.2 Assets of Discontinued Operations -l - g - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 5,686,9!5£ 5578342 11,265,317 2, 445482 3690775 6,134,257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.§.

Statement of financial position (balance sheet) as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts are expressed in terms of Thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") uniess otherwise sfated..)

Audited Audited
curvent peried prior period
LIABILITIES Notes 31 December 2022 MD ber 2021
TL| FC|  Tom TL! FC| Total|
1. Funds Borrowed 7] 401069200 2,852,389 6960809 3,008,080, 308,583 3,926,663
Il Factoring Payables -{ - -l - -
(LI Debts from the Savings Fund Pool - 4 B - -
V. Lease Payables (Net) i3 8,548 3,548 10,614 «f 10,614
1 Issued Securities {Net) 2 1,941,141 1,941,141 9:!!.120i - 928,120
Finsncial Liabilities at Fair Value
V1. Through Profit/Loss (Net) - 4 - - -
VII. Derivative Financial Liabllities i 11,336] 11,336 lll‘lll;' - 112,121
VIIl.  Provisions i7 473 47370 30,457 - 30,457
A Provisions for Restructuring E 1 1 - -l -
2 Reserves for Employee Benefits 12,075 {1 4316| - 4,316
.3 General Provisions - - E of . -
4 Other Provisions 35.295| 4 35295 26,141 l 16,14]
IX. Current Tax Liability 18 - 4 E -| .| .
X. Deferred Tax Liability ] 50,38 - 50,88 - - -]
X1 Subordinated Debt - - - -
X110 Other Liabilities 15 211,00 “I.ﬁ!;’ 652,12 %Jl?i 212,610 311,007
Subtotal 6,387,286 3,293918 9,681, 4,197,789 1,021,193 5,218,941
Payables Related to Assets for Sale and Discontinued
X11l.  Operations (Net) .| -1 .l i
131 Held For Sale - - B - -
132  Discontinued Operations . 4 . - .
XIY. Sharcholders’ Equity 1,584,123 4 1,584,121 917,278 - 417,275
14.1 Paid in Capital 19 317,000 - 37 317,000 317,000
14.2 Capital Reserves 19 76,27 o 76,27 76,270 - 16,210
14.2.1  Share Premiums - E E -l - B
14.2.2  Share Cancellation Profits g 1 E - - -
1423 Other Capital Reserves 76,270, E 76,270 16,270 - 76,270
A lated Comprehensive that will not be
143 Reclassified 1o Profit or Loss (3,331} - 33 (342) - ] (342)
Accumulated Other Compeehensive Income that will be
144 Reclassified o Profit or Loss (3,131 4 @A (2.906) - {9,906)
14.5 Profit Reserves 20 534,253 E 534,253 773,154 - 773,154
14,5.1 Legal Reserves 43,508 E 43,901 43,908 - 43,908
14,52  Status Reserves E E E - - o
14.5.3  Extraordirary Reserves 490,345, E 490,345 729,246 - 729,246
14,54  Other Profit Reserves - « E - - E
14.6 Profit or Loss 663,062 4 663,062 (233,901} - (238,901)
14.6.1  Prior Pexicds Profit or Loss Fi] - E E {320,085} - (320,085)
14.62  Net Profit or Loss for the Period 663,062 4 663,062 81,134, ! 81,184
L l
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,971,409, 3,293 91% 11,265327 5,1 lS.ﬂ“l l.ﬂn.l’.‘l} 6,136,257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.§.

Statement of off-balance sheet items as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts are expressed in terms of Thousands of Turkish Lira {"TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
current period prior period
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 31 December 202 31 December 2021
Notes T | ¥c | Total n FC Tatal
T T
1 R F: img T i - - - - - .
1] Noa-R Factoring Ti | - - . - - -
m Sevings Fimsacing Contracts Transactions - - - - - -
v Guarsnters Recelved 15,196,561 143,608,185 158,096,746 5,610,990 95,731,307 185,360,297
v Guarastess Given 23 1,805,716 - 1804716 £110,133 - 1,110,133
vi Commitments 3. 781,98 452207 4,245,178 1.517.9%7 851,341 237008
&1 Inevocable commitments . - - - - -
6.2 Revocable commitments 1,782,968 462200 4245175 1517947 85241 270,308
62.1 Lease commitments 182,968 461207 4,245,175 1517967 852043 1,370,308
5.2.1.1 Financial lease commitments 622,445 455871 1,07.3018 246,486 828,572 1,074 358
621.2 Operational lcase commitments 3.160.523 6336 3.166.859 1271491 11569 1295430
6.2.2 Other revocable commitments -} - - - - -
Vit Derivative Finsncinl Instrumients 13 1,965,995 JA5T.906 5,823,901 1912408 2,961,046 281345
71 Hedging devivative financial - 1.907 548 1,907 343 - - .
pAN] Traasactions for faie value hedge . 1.907.548 1507 540 - - N
EA ] Transactions for cash flow hedge - - - - - -
Trassactions for foreign net

T3 investment hedge - . - . - .
7.2 Trading tasactions 1.965, 995 1,950,358 3916153 2912405 1.961.046 SA73 451
Ll Forward buy/sell wansactions i - . - - B
712 Swaps buy/sell ransactions 1,965,995 1.950,358 3,916,353 1 845,600 2R94 241 5739841
723 Options buy/sell ransactions - . - . - -
724 Futures buy/sell transaciions - - . 66,805 6,305 133,610
125 Other . - i - - - .
vil Ttems Held in Cusptedy 1,278 1669 | 4947 1,367 21,56) | I
YOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITAMENTS 11,851,518 147921 861 | 170,776 438 15,170 82 99,547257 | 11471809

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Statement of profit or loss as of 31 December 2022
(Amounts are expressed in terms of Thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Andiied Antlited
Current Peried Priov Perlod
1 Jasmary - 1 Jamupry -
INCOME and EXFENSE ITEMS Nate 3t December 2023 31 December 103
. Operating Income 1,096,374 5T 31
Factormg bncome - E
[N} Inderem R d from Factonag R il - E
LL Duscouiod - 4
L2 Other - 4
1.2 Froes apd Commicsions Recived rom Faclonng Rocaivables o J
121 Drscounted - L
1.2.2 Oy - E
Toceme froun Flaancing Leani N J
1.} Interat Recoved from Fimsce Loms - i
14 Fees mnd Commizpoas Received dom Finasce Loans - 4
Lease Income Fe LeFH 570017
[B] Fimmcinl Lease Jncome 11,987 139,455
16 Opurnag Lease lacoms: J'N.IITI AL E A
1.7 Fexa sl € k R d Brom Lease Op E E
Savinps Flasaciag Inceme 4 o
1N} Duvilowds Reccived fom Savings Finamang bncome r 4
1.9 Fors mnd Commiznons Rocorvod Brom Saviags Faancag Activbics E
il Fimance Expenses (-) 27 0,013,222 |$1|.l5l1
2.1 Dividends Givew ke Uhe Savings Fund Pool - p
2.2 Intorexis on Famds Bosrowal (727,562 (158,321
13} Istorest Expenses on Factoning Fayables E
2.4 Fmancial Lossc Exposicn 2,419, (2. 76%
2.5 Istorest Exparscs oa Socwnticon saod (254,301 (144, 909)
2.6 Ouiscy Indere Exponses (1,682,
2.2 Fecx and Commtissonns Pad ll'l.m:l {15,858
. Grest ML (1+11) 13,651 148,467
1. Operating Expense (-} 25 134,277 103,127
.1 Poremcl Exposces 33,211y {16,127}
4.2 Provision Expense for Exsploymou Tonmanation Boscfits {1,820) (4038,
4.3 Rocanch s Dy E - E
4.4 Gemoral Adimanciration Exponscy 116,019!
4.5 Dby 163237y
v, Operating Gress ML (LI1V)
vl Other Operating Income 16
6.1 Talcron incose from Banks
4h.2 JacrH oa Socunites
6.} Dwvidhond bwome
.4 Trading Gaies on Sowitics
6.3 Dxrivative Fimmacinl Tramsations Profi 26
6.6 Forcign Exchmge Cains
6.7 Other
Vil Specific Pravisieas far NFLs (-) Fi
7.1 Specific Provisions
b2 Expocted Lo Provisions
7.1 Genaral Provisions E
7.4 Ot 4
(vitl. Other Operating Expensen () E ) {1,780,763%
8.1 Impainncs Losces on Sovwrties Pornfobo - 4
8.2 Imgairmosd of Fixod Asscts - -
L) Loss of Capital Markor Tramsections -
B Loss from Danvalive Finmcial Tomssctios (440,988 {1,007, 147}
u.5 Foraaga Exchmge Lo {1,041, 300 11,685,312§
LT3 Onhor (!:ln.:!:sl {1U,084]
IX. Net Opeesting VE (V+...+VIIN 7 102,183
X. Inteme Resulted from Moger -
X1 Shares from Proflts sad Lones of Inveiimont Vialsed by Equity Methed .
IXIL Net Mosctary Pasition Gala/Lany - p
IX1EL. P/L Before Tax fram Continuiag Oporationy (IX+X+X1)} 740,3: 10,101
X1V, Coatimiag Operatisns Tax Provities (4) i (IT.4%) [H KT
14.1 Corowt Lex provision {4,447 (}.9):1
142 Diefearce) tax cxquense eflect (+) (73049) {16,979)
14.3 Deferrad tax mcome effect (-} 16 E E
Y. Contivming Operations Pevied Net PAL {XILEX1V) [LAK 1] 51,184
IXVT. Iacemy irpm Discontinged Operations o ]
6.4 Incaree of moa-currend asscts held Jor sale: R ]
162 Sale profhs from Associaies, Sebndimios aod il Viwens E
161 Income Gom other discontinsed operations g 4
XVIL. Ewp fewm DN Op “ E J
17.1 Fxponscs of non-carroat poscts beld for e - 4
172 Expensry profits from Assncisics, Subeidiarics md Joint Ventures
173 Exponse Fom olbor discontisscd opermtions -

YL P/L Before Tax from Discoatinucd Operssions (XV-XVI) o ]
IX1X. Tazstion On Taceast irom Discontisucd Oparatians (4} .| 4
19.1 Cwirent tax provision . J

Deforred L expense cifoct {+) - 4
Deforred (an icome effect {+) R i
Net P/L irom Discontiauscd Operations (X VIRXVID} - i
Net PesfivLass for the-Peviod (XV+XIX) 63,061 11,134
Profit / ko por share (Foll TL) - J

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.§.

Statement of other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022

{Amounts are expressed in terms of Thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL"} unless otherwise staled.)

Audited Awdited
twrrent peried prier peried
1 Jamuary - 1 Janusry -
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
[ B Prafit/Less For the Period 663,062 1184
L Cier Compredensive Income 3,78 19312
21 Other comprehensive imceme or expenss that will wet be reclassified te profit or Loss (1,989) »
FAN| Gaing/Losses on Revaluation of Tangible Agsety - -
212 Gains/Losses on Revaluation of Intangible Assen . -
213 Gaing/Losses on Remeasurement of Defined Beachit Pension Plans {39713 97
214 Other Comprehensive lncome ltoms That Will Not Be Reclassified as Profil or Loss . -
Taxes Related 10 Other Comprehensive [ncome That Will Not to Be
LS Reclazsified 1o Profil or Loss 984 {8)
22 Other comprehensive income or expease that will be reclassified te preflt or loss 146 &775 19233
2t Foreign Currency Tranglation Diffcrences - .
Vahaation/or and Classificstion Gaist/Losses of Finaacial Assets al Fair Value Through Other

222 Comprchensive income . -
23 Gains/Losses from Cash Flow Hedges 9003 24,108
124 Gainy/Logset from Investment Hedges Related wo Foreign Entity - -
225 Other Comprehensive Income liems That Will Be Reclissificd as Other Profit or Locs - .
126 Taxes Related to Comprehensive bncome That Will Be Reclagsified to Profit or Loss 18 (2.25%) {5.070)
. Total Comprehensive Inceme (1+11) 564,848 180,506

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
current period prior period
Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
A, Cash Flows from Opersting Activities
11 Operating Profit Before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 896,996 271,136
1 T dleasing i 1,012,707 534,146
112 Interest paid/Leasing Expenses (BE5.963) {442,126)
1.0.3  Dividend received - .
L.i4  Fees and commissions received - .
1.L.S  Other income 808,258 32,17
1.1.6  Collections from previously written-off doubtful receivables 6. 26 149,847 -
.17 Payments to personnel and service suppliers (32,345) (13,347)
1.1.8  Taxes paid {16,075) (49,787)
1.1.9  Other (139,433) 90,0
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (4,064,350) (2,029,278)
12,1  Net (intrease) decrease in facloning receivables - -
L2.1 Neti e) in financial loans - -
121 Net (i ) o in leasing receivabl {3,0712,812) {1,802,409)
1.2.2  NMet (increase) decrease in other assets (1,088,280} {499,293)
1.2.3  Net increase (decrease) in factoring payables - .
1.2.3  Net increase (decrease) in lease payables -
1.2.4  Net increase (decrease) in funds borrowed . .
1.2.5  Net increase (decrease) in overdue payables - -
1.2.6  Net increase (dececase) in other liabilities 06,242 272,424
I. Cash Flows from Operating Activities (3,167,854} (1,758,142}
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
2.1 Acquisition of Investments, Associates and Subsidianes - -
22 Dispasal of [n A iates and Subsidiari - -
23 Purchases of Property and Equipment &9 {1,272,575) (668,530)
2.4 Disposals of Property and Equipment 397,586 68,9650
Acquisition of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other -
2.5 Comprehensive Income -
Disposals of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Cther 5,845
246 Comprehensive Income -
27 Purchase of Financial Assets at Amortized Costs .
28 Sale of Financial Assets sl Amontized Costs - .
29 Other (16,103) (74,463)
Il. Net Cash (Used in} from Investing Activities {385.247) (674,033)
C. Cash Flows frem Financing Activities
31 Cash obtained from funds borrowed and securities issued 11,82 4,065,921 2,341,524
12 Cash used for repay of funds b d and fes issued N .
13 Issued capital instnanents -
34 Dividends paid - -
3.5 Paymenis for finance leases (5,654) .
16 Other - 89,706
111, Net Cash (Used in) from Financing Activities 4,060,267 2,431,230
Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash
1. Equivalents 1,383 1,696
Y. Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,049 i
V1. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 3 4314 1,563
VII.  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 3 13,363 4,314

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Statement of profit distribution for the year ended 31 December 2022
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") uniess otherwise stated.)

Current Period” Prior Period
(31/1272012) (31/1272021)
I DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT FERIOD PROFIT
1.1 CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT 740,558 102,102
1.2 TAXES AND DUES PAYABLE () {77,496) (20,918)
1.2,1  Corporate Tax {Income Tax) 4,447) 3,939
1.2.2  [Income Tax Withholding . .
1.2.3  Other Tax and Legal Liabitities ™ (73,049} (16,979}
A, NET PERIOD PROFIT (1.1 - L.2) §63,062 81,184
1.3 PRIOR YEAR'S LOSSES (-) . {320,085}
14 FIRST LEGAL RESERVE (-) . .
1.5 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES NEEDED TO BE KEPT IN THE COMPANY (-} - -
B DISTRIBUTABLE NET PERIOD PROFIT [{A-1.3-1.4-1.5)] 663,062 {133,901)
1.6 FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS {(-) -
1.6.1  To Qwners of Ordinary Shares -
162  To Owners of Preferred Stocks -
163  To Owners of Participating Shares .
164  To Profit Shaning Bonds -
165  To Owners of the ProfivLoss Sharing Certificates -
17 DIVIDEND TQ PERSONNEL (-) -
1.8 DIVIDEND TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS {-) .
19 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS {-} -
1.2.1  To Owners of Ordinary Shares -
1.9.2  To Owners of Preferred Stocks - -
1.9.3  To Owners of Participaling Shares -
1.9.4  To Profit Shaning Bonds - -
1.9.5  To Owners of the ProfitLoss Sharing Certificates -
1.10 SECOND LEGAL RESERVE(-) -
1.1 STATUS RESERVES (-) - .
1.2 EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES - (238,9001)
I.t3  OTHER RESERVES . .
1.14  SPECIAL FUNDS .
Il DISTRIBUTION FROM RESERYES
21 DISTRIBUTED RESERVES .
22 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) .
23 SHARE TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) B
2.3.1  To Owners of Ordinary Shares -
232  To Owners of Preferred Stocks -
233 To Owners of Participating Shares -
2.34  To Pmofit Sharing Bonds
23.5  To Owners of the Profit/Loss Shaning Cenificates
24 SHARE TO PERSONNEL {-)
2.5 SHARE TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-)
1L EARNINGS PER SHARE - .
LA | TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (TL}) - .
32 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES ( % )} -
13 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (TL)
34 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS { %)
Iv. DIVIDEND PER SHARE
4.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (TL} -
42 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES { %) - -
43 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (TL) .
44 TO OWHNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (%) .
*r For the current year, it has been stated that “As the Bank's General Assembly meeting has noi yet been held as of the date of publication of the financial
siatemnents, profil distribution has not been decided and only the amount of distributable profit is indicated in the profi distribution table™.
o The Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency docs not consider the i related 1o deferved tax assets to be considered as cash or internal
resources and therefore the part of the profit for the period arising from the related assets should not be subject (o profit distribution and capital increase;
deferred tax & fexpense has not been taken into consideration in the calculation of distributable profit as of 31 December 2021.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.S.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise stated.)

1.  Organization and operations of the Company

Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$. (“the Company™) was established in 1997 and its activity field is to engage with domestic
and foreign financial leasing activities within the framework of the provisions of the legislation. The Company is
headquartered at the address Biiylikdere Caddesi, No: 141, Kat: 16 Esentepe - Sigli / Istanbul / Turkey.

As of 31 December 2022, the Company is affiliated to Denizbank Financial Services Group and its largest shareholders
are Denizbank A.S. with a rate of 99.99%.

As of 21 Janvary 2020, Denizbank AG, which has a 51% share of the Company, has transferred all of its shares to
Denizbank A.S. in exchange for an amount of TL 645,888 equivalent to EUR 98,481,000.

As of 31 December 2022, the number of employees of the Company is 101 (31 December 2021: 80).

Dividend to be paid:
As of 31 December 2022, the Company has no dividends payable (31 December 2021: None).

2, Basis of presentation of the financial statements
2.1  Basis of presentation
2.1.1 Applied accounting standards

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its financial statements in accordance with the
“Communique on Financial Leasing, Factoring and Uniform Chart of Accounts which shall be applied by Finance
Companies published in Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861 and Regulation, Communique
and Circular on Accounting Policies of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Finance Companies and their Financial
Statements and announcements published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Authority (“BRSA™) together
referred as “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation” and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards
(“TFRS") for those matters not regulated BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation. TFRS includes
Standards and Interpretations published by POA as Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS™), Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards, TAS Interpretations and TFRS Interpretations.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at their fair values.

Approval of financial statements:

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors and authorized to be published on 10 February
2023. The General Assembly has the authority to change the financial statements.

2.1.2 Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise staled.)

2, Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)

2.1.3 Going concern

The Company prepared its financial statements considering the going concern principle.
2.1.4 Currency used

The Company's financial statements are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates (the functional currency). The Company's financial position and results of operations are expressed in TL,
which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

2.2  Changes in accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies regarding the first-time application of a new TAS/TFRS is applied based on the first-
time application requirements of the relevant TAS/TFRS, if any, otherwise changes in accounting policies are applied
retrospectively and the prior period financial statements are restated accordingly.

POA made an announcement on 20 January 2022 regarding the application of TAS 29 “Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 29") for entities adopting Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS"} for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The announcement stated that, entities that apply TFRS should not adjust their
financial statements in accordance with TAS 29 for the year ended 31 December 2021. As of the date of this report,
POA has not made any further announcements regarding the scope and application of TAS 29. As a result, no inflation
adjustment was made to the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2022 in accordance
with TAS 29.

2.2.2 Significant Accounting Evaluation, Estimates and Assumptions

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognized prospectively in the period of the change, if the change
affects that period only; or the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. There has not been
any significant change in the accounting estimates of the Company in the current year. Significant accounting errors
identified are applied retrospectively and prior period financial statements are restated.

2.2.3 New and Revised Turkish Financial Reporting Standards

a) Amendments that are mandatorily effective from 2022

Amendments to TFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to TAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to TFRS Standards Amendments to TFRS 1, TFRS 9 and TAS 41

2018-2020

Amendments to TFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to TFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update an cutdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in TFRS 3 without significantly changing
the requirements in the standard.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early application is permitted

if an entity also applies all other updated references (published together with the updated Conceptual Framework) at
the same time or earlier.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise stated.)

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
2.2.3 New and Revised Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

a) Amendments that are mandatorily effective from 2022 (continued}

Amendments to TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2022. Early application is permitted,
Amendments to TAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’.
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract or an allocation of other

costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

The amendments published today are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early
application is permitted.

Annual Improvements to TFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to TFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment permits a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of TFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent's date of transition to TFRSs.

Amendments to TFRS 9 Firancial Instruments

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by cither the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

Amendments to TFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™) has published Amendments to TFRS 16
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2027 that extends, by one year, the June 2020 amendment that
provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease
modification.

1"




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise slated.)

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
2.2.3 New and Revised Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

a) Amendments that are mandatorily effective from 2022 (continued)

Amendments to TFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 {continued)

On issuance, the practical expedient was limited to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021. Since lessors continue to grant COVID-19 related rent
concessions to lessees and since the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic are ongoing and significant, the POA decided
to extend the time period over which the practical expedient is available for use.

The new amendment is effective for lessees for annual reporting perieds beginning on or after 1 April 2021. Earlier
application is permitted.

b) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not vet effective

The Company has not yet adopted the following standards and amendments and interpretations to the existing
standards:

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to TAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

Amendments to TFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying TFRS 9

Amendments to TAS | Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to TAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to TAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to TFRS 17 Initial Application of TFRS 17 and TFRS 9 — Comparative
Information (Amendment to TFRS 17)

Amendments to TFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to TAS | Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

TFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfililment value and provides a more uniform
measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the
goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. TFRS 17 supersedes TFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts as of | January 2023.

Amendments to TAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether,
in the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified

as current (due or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current.

Amendments to TAS 1 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.

Amendments to TFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying TFRS 9
The amendment changes the fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts from

applying TFRS 9, so that entities would be required to apply TFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 with the deferral of the effective date of TFRS 17.

12




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.S.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise stated.)

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.3 New and Revised Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
b) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective

Amendments to TAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting
policies.

Amendments to TAS 1 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.

Amendments to TAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

With this amendment, the definition of *a change in accounting estimates” has been replaced with the definition of
“an accounting estimate”, sample and explanatory paragraphs regarding estimates have been added, and the differences
between application of an estimate prospectively and correction of errors retrospectively have been clarified.

Amendments to TAS 8 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.

Amendments to TAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts
of deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on initial recognition,

Amendments to TAS 12 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.

Amendments to TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and Initial Application of TFRS 17 and TFRS 9 — Comparative
Information

Amendments have been made in TFRS 17 in order to reduce the implementation costs, to explain the results and to
facilitate the initial application.

The amendment permits entities that first apply TFRS 17 and TFRS 9 at the same time to present comparative
information about a financial asset as if the classification and measurement requirements of TFRS 9 had been applied
to that financial asset before.

Amendments are effective with the first application of TFRS 17.
Amendments to TFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to TFRS 16 clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy
the requirements in TFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.

Amendments are effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
Amendments to TAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to TAS 1 clarify how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the
reporting period affect the classification of a liability.

Amendments are effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise stated. )

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)

13  Summary of significant accounting policies

Leases

Financial leases

Leases - The Company as lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases - The Company as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability 10 the lesser is
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs. Rentals payable under
operating leases (benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a
straight-line basis over the lease term) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Operational leases

Whether an agreement is a leasing transaction or contains a leasing transaction depends on the principles of the agreement
and involves an evaluation on whether execution of an agreement depends on a certain asset or the use of a certain asset
and whether the agreement includes the right 1o use the asset.

As lessee

(1) In the position of lessee

These are leasing transactions where the lessee holds all the risks and benefits pertaining to the asset in question.
Operational leasing payments are booked as expense during the lease period.

As lessor

(i) In the position of lessor

Total income obtained from operational fleet leasing are booked linearly in the income statement during the lease period.
Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

14




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.$.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise statad.)

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Finance Lease Receivables and Other Receivables

Finance lease receivables and other receivables are carried at fair value at initial recognition, and they are carried at
amortized cost subsequent to initial recognition, using the effective interest method. Provision for doubtful finance lease
receivables and other receivables are recognized as an expense and written off against the profit for the year. Provision for
receivables under follow-up is allocated assessing the Company’s loan portfolio, quality and risk and considering the
economic conditions and other factors including the related legislation against the potential losses that may be resulted
from the cument finance lease receivables.

In accordance with *TFRS 9-Financial Instruments” standard, loan loss provision is allocated for expected credit losses
on financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Within the scope of TERS 9, the expected credit loss provision is determined according to the “three-stage” impairment
model, the details of which are based on the change in the credit quality of financial assets after the initial recognition
and detailed below.

Within the scope of TFRS 9, it is evaluated whether there is a significant increase in the credit risk of the financial
instrument within the scope of impairment since it was initially included in the financial statements. When making
this assessment, the change in the default risk of the financial instrument is taken into account.

The expected credit loss estimates are required to be unbiased, probability-weighted and include supportable
information about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future economic conditions. In accordance with
TFRS 9, an important measurement in expected credit provision is assessed whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly. These financial assets are divided into three categories depending on the
increase in credit risk observed since their initial recognition:

Stage 1:

Financial assets that do not have a significant increase in credit risk when they are initially included in the financial
statements or after the first time they are included in the financial statements. The credit risk impairment provision for
these assets is accounted at the expected credit losses over the 12-month default risk. 12-month expected credit loss is
calculated on the basis of a default expectation of 12 months following the reporting date.

Stage 2:

Financial assets that experienced a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, are transferred to
Stage 2. The expected credit loss of these financial assets is measured at an amount equal to the instrument’s lifetime
expected credit loss.

In order to classify a financial asset in the second stage, the following criteria is considered:

- Delay of less than 150 days, more than 30 days
- Restructuring of the loan due to payment difficulty.

Stage 3:

Financial assets with sufficient and fair information for impairment at the reporting date, are classified in the third
stage. The probability of default is taken into account as 100% in the calculation of impairment provision and the
provision is calculated according to the lifetime expected credit loss of the financial asset. Fora financial asset to be
classified in the third stage, it must have more than 150 days past due.

Other Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognized at fair market value after deducting expenses directly related to the purchase, except for

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and recognized at fair value. Investments are recognized or derecognised
on the trade transaction date, which is subject to a contract that has the condition of delivery of investment instruments in
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2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

accordance with the time period determined by the relevant market. Financial assets are classified as “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss™, “financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income" and “other financial
assets measured at amortized cost”. Classification is made depending on the nature and purpose of financial assets and is

determined during initial recognition.
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through the income statement are financial assets held for trading and not acquired for trading
purposes but recognized in this category at initial recognition. A financial asset is classified in this category when it is
acquired for the purpose of selling it in the short-term or when it is considered that a more accurate accounting
representation will be obtained at initial recognition. Financial assets that constitute derivative products that have not been
determined as an effective hedging instrument against financial risk are also classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Effective interest rate method.:

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate a shorter period.

Held to maturity and available for sale debt instruments and profit from financial assets classified as loans and
receivables are recognized in income by using the effective interest rate method.

Assets measured at amortized cost:

Debt instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity are classified as assets measured at amortized cost (investments). Assets measured at
amortized cost (investments) are recognized by deducting the amount of impairment from the amortized cost using the
effective interest method, and the related income is calculated using the effective interest method.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Quoted equity investments and quoted certain debt securities held by the Company that are traded in an active market are
classified as being available- for-sale financial assets and are stated at fair value. The Company also has investments in
unquoted equity investments that are not traded in an active market but are also classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and stated at cost since their value can’t be reliably measured. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
arerecognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve with the exception of impairment
losses, interest calcutated using the effective interest method, and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets,
which are recognized in profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends related to equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in the income
statement when the Company's right to receive dividends occurs.

The fair value difference expressed in foreign currency is determined over the fair value of assets recognized in other
comprehensive income and translated at the prevailing exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are. determined based on the amortized cost of the
monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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2, Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than these at fair value through profit or loss are subject to impairment testing at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of financial asset or financial asset group. An
entity shall assess al each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset. That loss event or events must also have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets. For the financial assets which are measured at amortized cost except for finance
lease receivables and factoring receivables stated above, the amount of impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Except for financial lease receivables and operating lease receivables, for all other financial assets, the impairment is
deducted directly from the carrying value of the related financial asset.

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Changes in allowance accounts are
recognized in the income statement.

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent the camrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

Increase in fair value of available for sale financial assets subsequent to impairment is recognized in directly in equity.
Revenue

Finance Lease Income: Initial values of leased assets at the beginning of the leasing period under the Finance Lease
Act are recognized as leasing receivables in the balance sheet. Interest income resulting from the difference between
the total finance lease receivables and the fair value of the leased assets are recognized in the related period in which
the receivable portion for each accounting period is distributed over the related period using the fixed interest rate
through the leasing period. The interest amount not accrued yet is followed up under the account of unearned income.
Operating lease income is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis during the lease period. The
start-up costs incurred during the implementation and negotiation of the lease operation are included to the cost of the
leased asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Other interest income is accrued based on the effective interest which equals the estimated cash flows to net book
value of the related asset.

Dividend income from equity share investments is recognized when the shareholders have the right to receive the
payment.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recorded in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions expressed in foreign currency are converted into Turkish Lira at the rate prevailing at the time of the
transaction. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. Such balances are
translated at period-end exchange rates.
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2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)

23  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are presented with their net value adjusted for inflation until 31 December 2004, less

accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is allocated using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives of these assets are as follows::

Butldings 50 years
Furniture and fixture 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

If the book values of property, plant and equipment are higher than their net realizable values, they are indicated in
their net realizable values in the financial statements. Profits and losses resulting from the sale of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the book values with the selling price and are taken into account in
determining the operating profit.

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and their residual values are reviewed at each reporting period.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly attributable costs of setting the asset to
work for its intended use are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at
historical costs after the deduction of accumulated depreciation and the provision for value decreases. Intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over 3-5 years.

Employee benefits

Under the Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or involuntarily
leaving the Company. Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement benefit plan as per TAS
Accounting Standard 19 (revised) “Employee Benefits” (“TAS 19™). Retirement benefit obligation recognized in the
balance sheet is calculated according to the net present value of the expected future liability amounts due to the
retirement of all employees and reflected in the financial statements.

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The Company recognizes
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
Taxation

Income tax

Corporate income tax is calculated according to the Tax Procedural Law, and tax expenses except corporate income
tax are recognized in operating expenses.

It is deducted when there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities or if such assets and
liabilities are associated with income tax collected by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax

The Company calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements in accordance with “Turkish
Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” (“TAS 12") and the related declarations of the BRSA concerning this
standard. In the deferred tax calculation, in accordance with the tax legislation, the tax rate enacted as of the balance
sheet date is used.
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2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

The main items that make up the temporary differences are the temporary differences arising from financial leasing
transactions, the valuation differences of derivative financial instruments, the differences between the carrying value
of the provision and the tax value, and the doubtful receivables provisions.

Deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are recognized at the estimated amount that they will increase or decrease
future tax payable in the periods where temporary differences will disappear. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized
{Note 16).

Corporate tax rate is determined in accordance with the regulation introduced by the Law No. 7394 on the " Valuation
of Immovable Property Owned by the Treasury and Amendment to the Value Added Tax Law and Amendments to
Some Laws and Decrees", as 25% to be applied to corporate earnings for the taxation period, starting from 2022. Thus,
as of 31 December 2022, the Company has calculated deferred tax at the rate of 25% for assets and liabilities.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a resuit of a past event, and it is probable
that the Company will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as capital. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the period in which they are
declared.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign currency forward contracts and swap curmrency
transactions) to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and
forecasted transactions. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are
remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

TFRS 9 provides the option to defer the adoption of hedge accounting of TFRS 9 and continue with TAS 39 “Hedging
accounting” in the choice of accounting policy. In this context, Company continues to apply TAS 39 standard for
hedge accounting,

Derivative products of the Company are classified as for “hedging” or “trading” in accordance with TAS 39

Accordingly, although some derivative transactions provide an effective hedge for the Company economically, in the
accounting aspect, they are recognized for as for “trading” within the scope of TAS 39.
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2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Liabilities and receivables arising from the derivative transactions are recognised in off-balance sheet items with their
nominal values.

The derivative transactions are valued at fair value subsequent to initial recognition and are presented in the
“Derivative Financial Assets” and “Derivative Financial Liabilities” items of the balance sheet depending on the
resulting positive or negative amounts of the computed value.

Differences in the fair value of derivative transactions held for trading are recognized under profit/loss from derivative
financial transactions in the income statement.

In the initial design of a derivative financial instrument as a hedge, the Company discloses in writing the relationship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, the risk management objectives and strategies of the relevant
hedge, and the methods to be used to measure the effectiveness of the hedge.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized at their fair value and revalued at their fair value at

the balance sheet date in each reporting period. The change in their fair value is recognized in the income statement. Net
gains or losses recognized in the income statement also include the interest paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments over the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period of time, to the
net present value of the financial liability.

Cash flow hedge accounting

Within the scope of foreign exchange risk management, the Company started to apply cash flow hedge accounting by
matching future operating lease receivables in contracted euros (“EUR”, “EURO™) and estimated future sales of used
vehicles fair values of which are followed in EUR, with loans received in EUR as of 1 April 2018.

In cash flow hedge accounting; as a hedged item, the Company has determined the future sales of used leasing
receivables and the fair values of the used vehicle used in EUR, followed by the EUR denominated loans as hedging

instruments.

As of 31 December 2022, the after-tax loss recognized in equity through cash flow hedge accounting is TL 3,131 (31
December 2021: TL 9,906 loss).
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2 Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
23  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash flow hedge accounting (continued)

Within the scope of interest rate risk management, the Company started to apply fair value hedge accounting as of 4
April 2022 by matching its fixed interest leasing receivables in EUR with interest rate swap instruments.

At the beginning of the association and in the ongoing process, the Company evaluates whether the hedging method
is effective on the changes in the expected fair values of the related instruments during the peried in which the method
is applied, or whether the effectiveness of the hedge in the actual resuits is in the range of 80% - 125%.

Earnings per share

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “Bonus Shares” to shareholders from retained
earnings. In computing earnings per share, such “Bonus Share” distributions are treated as issued shares. Accordingly,
the retrospective effect for those share distributions is taken into consideration in determining the weighted-average
number of shares outstanding used in this computation.

The Company’s shares are not traded in the stock exchange, therefore earnings per shares information is not provided.
Subsequent events

Events after balance sheet date comprise any event between the balance sheet date and the date of authorization of the
financial statements for publication, even if any event after balance sheet date occurred subsequent to an announcement

on the profit or following any financial information disclosed to public.

The Company adjusts the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events afler the balance
sheet date if such subsequent events arise.

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in finance lease, real estate and operational lease business and does not present segment
information since its shares are not traded on the stock exchange.

2.3.1 Explanations on TFRS 16 Leases standard

The Company evaluates at the beginning of a contract whether the contract is of lease nature or not. If the contract
delegates the right to control the use of the asset defined for a price for a certain period of time, this contract is of lease
nature or includes a lease. The Company reflects a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in the financial statements at
the date when the lease actually begins.

Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use asset is first accounted for using the cost method and includes:
o  First measurement amount of the lease liabitily,
o The amount obtained by deducting all lease incentives received from all lease payments made on or before

the lease actually starts,
o All initial costs incurred by the Company,

When applying the cost method, the Company measures the right-of-use asset,

o Less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and
o Over the corrected cost of the lease liabilty.

The Company applies depreciation provisions in TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment while depreciating its asset.

21




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.§.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {*TL"} unless otherwise stated.)

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
2.3.1 Explanations on TFRS 16 Leases standard (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the date when the lease actually starts, the Company measures its lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments not paid at that date. Lease payments are discounted using the implied interest rate on the lease if this rate
can be easily determined. The Company uses the alternative borrowing interest rate of the Company if this rate cannot
be determined easily.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities on the date that the lease actually starts consists
of the payments to be made for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease period and not paid on the date
the lease actually started. After the lease actually starts, the Company measures the lease liabilities as follows:

o Increases the carrying value to reflect the interest on the lease obligation,

o Decreases the camrying value to reflect the rent payments made; and

o Re-measures the bock value to reflect reassessments and restructurings, or to reflect the revised essence of
fixed lease payments.

The interest on the lease obligation for each period in the lease term is the amount found by applying a fixed periodic
interest rate to the remaining balance of the lease liabilities.

2.4  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are constantly reviewed. The updates to the accounting estimates are recorded in the
period in which the updates of the estimates are made and in the subsequent periods affected by these updates.

Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are explained
below:

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit is probable. The future taxable
profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on medium term business plan prepared
by Management and extrapolated results thereafter. The business plan is based on Management expectations that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Allowance for impairment of finance lease receivables

Assumptions and methods used in estimating the timing and amount of the future cash flows of finance lease
receivables are reviewed periodically in order to eliminate the differences between the estimated impairment on
finance receivables and occurred losses. The Company calculates deferred tax on non-performing finance lease
receivables portfolio which is added to corporate tax base on the assumption that these receivables will be subject to
taxation through either collection and/or sale of non-performing finance lease receivables.
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3. Banks
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Demand Deposits 4,132 9,231 928 3,386
4,132 9,231 928 3,386

As of 31 December 2022, the Company does not have any TL or FC time deposits (31 December 2021: None).

There is no blockage on bank deposits (31 December 2021: None).

4. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (Net)

31 December 2012

31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC
Investment Fund 473,246 - - -
473,246 - - R
5. Derivative Financial Assets/Liabilities
Fair Value
31 December 2022 Nominal Assets Liabilities
Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading
Currency Swaps Buy/Sell Transactions 3,916,353 6,970 11,336
Hedging Derivative Financial Assets
Interest Rate Swap Buy/Sell Transactions 1,907 548 76,893 -
Total 5,823,901 83,863 11,336
Fair Value
31 December 2021 Nominal Assets Liabilities
Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading
Currency Swaps Buy/Sell Transactions 5,873,451 44,490 112,121
Total 5,873,451 44,490 112,121
Derivative Financial Assets for Hedging Purposes
As of 31 December 2022, the information on fair value hedge accounting is as follows:
Income
Fair Value Statement
Difference Effect
Hedge Hedging Risk of the Net Fair Value of Hedging (Profit/Loss
Instrument Item Exposure Instrument from
Hedged b
Asset erivative
Financial
Transactions)
Asset Liabilities
Interest Rate Fixed Rate Interest
Swap Financial Lease . 76,893 60,281 - 12,939
. . Risk
Transactions Receivable
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6. Lease transactions

a. Finance Lease Receivables:

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Operational Lease Receivables 26,670 7,128
Invoiced Finance Lease Receivables 807,762 227918
Non-Performing Finance Lease Receivables 376,297 381,425
Not-invoiced Finance Lease Receivables 8,808,509 5,846,194
Less: Uneamned Interest Income (1,818,414) (1,274,992}
Finance Lease Interest Accruals 184,990 103,021
Expected Loss Provisions (1,105,539 (1,017,676}

Stage 1 (42,051) (61,082)

Stage 2 (765,221) (641,361}

Stage 3 (298,267) (315,233)
Net Finance Lease Receivables 7,280,275 4,273,018

As of 31 December 2022, the compound interest rate applicable for the finance lease receivables is 26.00% for TL,
6.5% for USD and 5.7% for EUR (31 December 2021: 17.40% for TL, 6.64% for USD and 5.46% for EUR).

The allocation of finance lease receivables according to their maturities as of 31 December 2022 is as follows:

2027 and
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 later Total
Finance Lease 205,736 3,086,358 1,858,582 1,348222 846,878 1726243 9,072,019

Receivables (Net) (*)

Unearned Interest (2,507) (732,254)

(385,811} (228,408) (147,532)

(321,902} (1,818,414)

Finance Lease

Receivables (Net) 203,229 2,354,104

1,472,771 1,119,814 699,346

1,404,341 7,253,605

) Operating lease receivables amounting 1o TL 26,670 are not included in the 1otal.

The allocation of finance lease receivables according to their maturities as of 31 December 2021 is as follows:

2027 and
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 later Total
Finance Lease 1,043,362 1,220,604 814,626 609,783 426,350 1426157 5,540,882

Receivables (Net) (*)

Unearned Interest (351,877) (267,624)

(157.622) (124,883) (114,236)

(258,750) (1,274,992)

Finance Lease

Receivables (Net) 691,485

952,980

657,004

484,900 312,114

1,167,407 4,265,890

™) Operating lease receivables amounting to TL 7,128 are not included in the total.
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6. Lease transactions (continued)

As of 31 December 2022, the distribution of finance lease receivables in terms of foreign currencies is as follows:

Unearned

Principal in Interest
Foreign Principle in Foreign Unesrned
Currency (*) Currency (Net) Currency Interest
UsD 92,898 1,737,047 (12,351) (230,942)
EUR 213,953 4,265,112 (31,602) (629,978)
TL - 3,069,860 - (957,494)
Total 9,072,019 (1,818,414)

™*) Operating lease receivables amounting to TL 26,670 are not included in the total.

As of 31 December 2021, the distribution of finance lease receivables in terms of foreign currencies is as follows:

Principal in Unearned Interest

Foreign Principle in Foreign Unearned
Currency (*) Currency {Net) Currency Interest
UsD 91,366 1,185,662 (13,528) (175,554}
EUR 191,024 2,804,654 (39,924) (586,171)
TL - 1,550,566 - {513,267}
Total 5,540,882 (1,274,992)
") Operating lease receivables amounting to TL 7,128 are not included in the total.

The distribution of the finance lease receivables based on type of interest in 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

. 31 December 2022 (*) B 31 December 2021 (*)

TL FC TL FC

Fixed interest rate 31,017,017 5,938,282 1,494,879 3,711,199
Floating interest rate 52,843 63,877 55,687 279,117
3,069,860 6,002,159 1,550,566 3,990,316

*) Operating lease receivables amounting to TL 26,670 (31 December 2021: TL 7,128) are not included in the total,

The Company’s guarantees for all finance lease receivables, except for non-performing finance lease receivables are as
follows (if the amount of guarantees exceeds the amount of receivables in calculation of guarantee amounts, only the
portion of the guarantee comresponding to the related receivable is included in the below table):

Guarantee Types: 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Mortgages 179,390 722,648
Assignments 14,356 52,309
Hostage Blockage 20,794 88,595
Buy-Back Agreements - 20,134
Letters of Guarantee 38,376 639
Cheque Blockage - 150
Bills of Guarantee 6,046,318 2,668,428

6,299,234 3,552,903
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6. Lease transactions (continued)

The details of expected loss provision as of 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Financial Lease Expected Loss Financial Lease

31 December 2022 (*)

Receivables Provisions (-} Receivables, Net
Stage 1 6,137,946 (42,051) 6,095,895
Stage 2 1,844,901 {765,221) 1,079,680
Stage 3 376,297 (298,267) 78,030
Total 8,359,144 (1,105,539) 7,253,605

") Operating lease receivables amounting to TL 26,670 are not included in the total.

The details of expected loss provision as of 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Financial Lease Expected Loss Financial Lease

31 December 2021

Receivables Provisions (-) Receivables, Net
Stage 1 3,749,225 (61,082) 3,688,143
Stage 2 1,152,916 (641,361) 511,555
Stage 3 381,425 (315,233) 66,192
Total 5,283,566 (1,017,676) 4,265,890

(4] Operating lease receivables amounting to TL 7,128 are not included in the total.

The guarantees received for finance lease receivables under follow-up and limited with the corresponding receivable
balance as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Guarantee Types: 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Cheque Blockage - 48,891
Mortgages 931 23,391
Bills of Guarantee 310,864 213,968
Letters of Guarantee 30,702 -

342,497 286,250

As of 31 December 2022, movement table of provisions for non-performing lease receivables is as follows:

Expected Loss Provision

Movement Table: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
End of Prior Period {61,082) (641,361) (315,233) (1,017,676)
TFRS9 Opening Effect - - - -
Reserved provision (22,282) (180,257) (67,361) (269,900)
Collections and provision reversals 41,344 29.070 149,847 220,261
Interstage Additions / Disposals N 27,327 (27,296) -
Amount written off during the period - - (38,224) (38,224)
Provision at the End of the Period (42,051) (765,221) (298,267) (1,105,539)
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6. Lease transactions (continued)

As of 31 December 2021, movement table of provisions for non-performing lease receivables is as follows:

Expected Loss Provision

Movement Table: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
End of Prior Period - (152,816) (127,539) (280,355)
TFRS9 Opening Effect (27,570) (336,257) (26,560) (390,387)
Reserved provision (55,872) (314,146) (88,216) (458,234)
Collections and provision reversals 30,263 34,323 46,714 111,300
Interstage Additions / Disposals (7,903) 127,535 (119,632) -
Amount written off during the period - - - -
Provision at the End of the Period {61,082) (641,361) (315,233) (1,017,676)

b. Operational Lease Receivables:

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Trade receivables 26,670 6,916
Trade receivables from related parties (Note 6} - 212
26,670 7,128

The Company engages with operational fleet leasing of motor vehicles. The following periods’ lease receivables of
fleet leasing activities pertaining to operational leases that cannot be cancelled are as stated below:

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

2022 - 182,977
2023 434,864 85,207
2024 317,903 28,131
2025 and later 209,353 -

962,120 296,315

The Company also tracks the second-hand values of the vehicles it has leased to its customers amounting to TL
2,204,739 (31 December 2021: TL 999,135) under its operating lease commitments. The Company requests mortgage,
pledge blockage agreement, letter of guarantee, check or bill from its main customers. The portion of total trade
receivables amounting to TL 1,609,604 (31 December 2021: TL 1,065,389) is guaranteed by mortgages, pledge
blocking contracts, letters of guarantee, checks and promissory notes.

7. Related party disclosures

Derivative Financial Assets from Related Parties

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Denizbank A.§.

79,960

41,925

79,960

41,925

Finance Lease Receivables from Related Parties

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Denizbank A.S. 200,066 156,134
Deniz Yatinm A.S. 529 1,057
Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatirim Ortakhgi A.S. - 1
Deniz Faktoring A.S. - 1

204,595 157,193

27




Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.§.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (*TL”) unfess otherwise stated.)

7. Related party disclosures (continued)

Funds Borrowed from Related Parties

Denizbank A.S

Currency Interest Rate Maturity 31 December 2022
TL 13.45% 02/01/2023 1,407,951
1.407.951
Denizbank A.S.
Currency Interest Rate Maturity 31 December 2022
EUR 6.00% 02/01/2023 715,502
EUR 4.30% 13/11/2028 920,455
EUR 3.95% 11/05/2032 565,936
2,202,293
Denizbank A.S.
Currency Interest Rate Maturity 31 December 2022
UsD 7.25% 02/01/2023 241,305
241,305
Denizl;ank AS. (%)
Currency Interest Rate Maturity 31 December 2021
EUR 2.50% 03/01/2022 587,298
587,298

(*) There is no Denizbank A.S. USD loan as of 31 December 2021.

Deposits at Related Parties

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Denizbank A.S. - Demand Deposit 11,282 3772
Denizbank AG Viyana — Demand Deposit 61 45
11,343 3,817

Finance Lease Interest Income from Related Parties
1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortaklifi A.S. 1 130
Denizbank A.S. 36,095 17,955
Deniz Yatinm A.S. 156 248

36,252 18,333
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7. Related party disclosures (continued)

Operating Lease Income from Related Parties

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Denizbank AS 58,835 9,648
Intertech Bilgi Islem ve Pazarlama Tic. A.S. 1,469 245
Deniz Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortakhifi A.S. 379 269
Deniz Faktoring A.S. 712 24
Deniz Portfoy A.S. 445 247
Deniz Yatirim A.$. 807 244
NEOHUB 610 -
63,257 10,677

Interest Income from Related Parties
1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Denizbank A.S. 96 2,348
96 2,348

Finance Expenses (*}
1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Denizbank AG Viyana - (1,776)
Denizbank A.$. Bahreyn (6,799) (62,936)
Deniz Yatinm A.S. - .
Denizbank A.S. (296.497) (20)

(303,296) (64,732)

(*) BITT (banking and insurance transaction tax), RUST (resource utilization support fund) and fee/commission

expenses are included in finance expenses.

Foreign Currency Gains and Gains on Derivative Transactions

1 January-
31 December 2022

1 January-
31 December 2021

Denizbank A.S. 152,178

152,178

Foreign Currency Losses and Losses on Derivative Transactions

1 January-
31 December 2022

1 January-
31 December 2021

Denizbank A S. (330,164)

(86,289)

(330,164)

(86,289)
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T Related party disclosures (continued)

General Administrative Expenses

1 January-
31 December 2022

1 January-

31 December 2021

Denizbank A.S. (5,555) (3,025)
Intertech A.S. (546) (72)
(6,101) (3,097)

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The Company provided TL 3,092 of benefits (health insurance, private pension plan, bonus etc.) to its key management
personnel consisting of general manager and assistant general managers in year 2022 (31 December 2021: TL 1,740),

8. Property, plant and equipment
1 January 2022 Additions Disposals 31 December 2022
Cost:
Furniture and fixtures 833 658 - 1,491
Vehicles 1,074,530 1,270,575 (132,821) 2,212,284
Real estate 2,419 - - 2419
Leasehold improvements 1,185 - (2} 1,183
Buildings (*) 13,945 1,172 - 15,117
1,092,912 1,272,405 (132,823) 2,232,494
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture and fixtures (379 (127) - (506)
Vehicles (43,507 - 12,418 (31,089)
Real estate (110) (84) - (194)
Leasehold improvements {1,179 3 - (1,182}
Buildings (*) {6,725) (2,930) - (9,655)
{51,900) (3,144) 12,418 {42,626)
Net book value 2,189,868

* The TFRS L6 cifect is shown in the additions line as the right-of-use asset.
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8. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

1 January 2021 Additions Disposals 31 December 2021
Cost:
Furniture and fixtures 465 368 - 833
Vehicles 492,650 666,832 (84,952} 1,074,530
Real estate 2,419 - - 2,419
Leasehold improvements 1,185 - - 1,185
Buildings (*) 12,617 1,330 (2) 13,945
509,336 668,530 (84,954) 1,092,912
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture and fixtures (340) (39) - (379
Vehicles {57,994) (1,508) 15,995 (43,507)
Real estate (110) - - (110)
Leasehold improvements (1,178) (1) - (L1779
Buildings (*) (4,115) (2,610) - (6,725)
(63,737) (4,158) 15,995 (51,900)
Net book value 1,041,012
9. Intangible assets
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Cost (Software)
Cpening Balance, 1 January 23,115 14,628
License purchases 16,103 8,487
Closing Balance 39,218 23,115
Amortization
Opening Balance, 1 Januatcy (12,188) (8,075)
Licenses {7,562) (4,113)
Sales - -
Closing Balance (19,750) (12,188)
Net Book Value 19,468 10,927
10.  Other assets
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Advances for Rental Operations 244 997 279,875 17,464 184,835
Prepaid Expenses (**) 40,226 - 10,005 -
Investments Subject to Leasing {*) 273,064 61,357 28,965 66,042
Other and Insurance Receivables 11,973 9,747 6,117 7,896
VAT Carried to the Next Period 164,796 - 91,191 -
Other 770 - 3,614 25
735,826 350,979 157,356 458,798
™ The Company buys machinery and equif from foreign and domestic vendots based on its lease agreements, As of 31 December 2027 and 31 December
2021, the msls and sdditional expenses of the machinery and P i and paid but aot anached to the payment plan are tracked in this item.

** Prepaid expenses in other itens mainly consist of flect leasing, & insurance expenses, bond / bond issuance commission expenses and financial lease fees.
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il. Funds borrowed

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC
Short-Term Funds Borrowed
Short-Term Funds Borrowed 4,116,920 1,232,134 3,018,080 679,165
Short-Term Portions of Long-Term Funds Borrowed - - - 36,468
Total Short-Term Liabilities 4,116,920 1,232,134 3,018,080 715,633
Long-Tenn Funds Botrowed
Long-Term Portions of Long-Term Funds Borrowed . 1,620,755 - 92,950
Total Long-Term Funds Borrowed - 1,620,755 - 92,950
Total Funds Borrowed 4,116,920 2,852,889 3,018,080 808,583

Maturity Analysis of Funds Borrowed:

3} December 2022

31 December 2021

Within 1 year 5,349,054 3,733,713
Within 1-2 yeats 75,047 47,328
Within 2-3 years 59,317 29,852
Within 3-4 years - 15,770
Within 4-5 years - -
Over 5 years 1,486,391 -

6,969,809 3,826,663

The details of short-term funds borrowed are as follows:

Currency Interest Rate %  Currency Amount 31 December 2022
TL 12.00% - 20.00% 4,092,388 4,092,388
UsD 7.25% - 7.50% 15,650 292,628
EUR 1.74% - 6.29% 47,097 938,874
Accrued interest on funds borrowed 25,164
Total 5,349,054

Currency Interest Rate %  Currency Amount 31 December 2021
TL 16.35% - 25.50% 3,005,813 3,005,813
USD 1.66% - 1.66% 48 626
EUR 1.50% - 4.00% 48,561 712,994
Accrued interest on funds borrowed 14,280

Total 3,733,713
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11. Funds borrowed (continued)

The details of long-term funds borrowed are as follows:

Currency Interest Rate % Currency Amount 31 December 2022
UsD 9.72% 145 2,711
EUR 1.74% - 6.30% 80,995 1,614,633
Accrued interest on funds borrowed 3411
Total 1,620,755
Currency Interest Rate % Currency Amount 31 December 2021
EUR 1.50% - 4.00% 6,331 73,873
Accrued interest on funds borrowed 19,077
Total 92,950
Loan interest rates are expressed in simple terms.
S o N 31 December 20_2_2 __"_31 Decemhc_:r 2021
TL FC TL FC
Fixed rate 4,116,920 1,283,485 3,018,080 738,115
Floating rate - 1,569,404 - 70,468
4,116,920 2,852,889 3,018,080 808,583
12.  Marketable securities issued
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Bonds 1,941,141 - 928,120 -
Bills - - - -
1,941,141 - 928,120 -
The details of the issued bonds in 2022 and 2021 are as follows (nominal):
Export Date ) Exported Compound Amortization
Nominal Amount Interest Rate Date  Coupon Term Type
28 September 2022 100,000 21.00% 6 January 2023 Prepaid Bond
26 October 2022 100,000 21.00% 27 January 2023 Prepaid Bond
24 August 2022 320,000 22.60% 17 February 2023 Prepaid Bond
31 August 2022 292,000 21.50% 24 February 2023 Prepaid Bond
2 September 2022 314,000 21.50% 3 March 2023 Prepaid Bond
7 September 2022 100,000 21.50% 8 March 2023 Prepaid Bond
9 December 2022 184,000 22.30% 10 March 2023 Prepaid Bond
14 December 2022 345,000 22.50% 15 March 2023 Prepaid Bond
9 December 2022 50,000 23.50% 10 May 2023 Prepaid Bond
14 December 2022 210,000 23.50% 10 May 2023 Prepaid Bond
2,015,000

(*) Denotes annual interest rates.
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12. Marketable securities issued (continued)

Export Date Exported Nominal Compound Amortization

Amount  Interest Rate Date  Coupon Term Type

25 August 2021 170,000 16.74% 2 March 2022 Prepaid Bond

3 September 2021 55,000 18.04% 2 September 2022 Prepaid Bond

13 October 2021 252,000 16.97% 9 February 2022 Prepaid Bond

27 October 2021 90,000 16.40% 2 March 2022 Prepaid Bond

10 November 2021 300,000 16.27% 30 March 2022 Prepaid Bond

24 November 2021 50,000 15.98% 30 March 2022 Prepaid Bond
917,000

(*)  Denotes annual interest rates.

13.  Lease payables (net)

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Financial Leasing Transactions Payables
(Building Rent) 10,367 - 14,431 -
Deferred Rental Expenses (1,819) - 3.817) -
8,548 - 10,614 -
14.  Derivative financial liabilities
- 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
U e TL _FC = TL __ FC
Fair Values of Currency Swap Transactions 11,336 - 112,121 -
11,336 - 112,121 -
15.  Other liabilities
- B - - 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Order Advances Received (*) 162,523 141,247 64,204 140,829
Payables to Finance Lease Suppliers 20,706 52,845 33,243 36,547
Fees and Other Income Tax Withholding 5,552 - 341 -
Expense Accruals - - 124 -
Social Insurance Premiums to be Paid 665 - 305 -
Other Taxes Payable 767 - 180 -
Committed Financial Leasing Receivables (**) 20,878 246,937 - 35,234
211,091 441,029 98,397 212,610
*) Order advances received consist of rent advances received from tenants for the pants of machinery and equipment which have not yet been
used by the customers.
“** Committed financial leasing receivables include advances received based on transactions whose contracts have been completed but not
invoiced.

:I'he Company generally purchases in cash from the suppliers. The Company has a financial risk management policy
that enables the Company to pay all its payables at their maturities.
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16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The Company recognizes deferred tax receivables and liabilities for temporary timing and valuation method
differences arising from the differences between the tax base legal financial statements and the financial statements

prepared in accordance with TAS/TFRS,

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
Di ject to D ax

Retirement Pay Provision 7,666 2,063
Unused Vacation Provision 967 363
Bonus Provision 3442 1,890
Other Expense Provisions 107 110
Income Accruals for Finance Leases and Ongoing Leasing Contracts (229,029) (144,736)
Allowance for Doubtful Finance Lease Receivables 807273 702,444
Derivatives {12,246) 67,631
General Provisions for Finance Lease Receivables 4,627 -
Financial Instrument Valuation Differences 553 106
Tax Base Differences in Property, Plant and Equiptent (1.087.683) (521,267)
Doubtful Lease Receivables Exchange Difference - 2,355
Prepaid Interest 854 608
Cormrection Regarding the Securities Commission (529) (1.416)
Letter of Guarantee Commission (1,790) (610)
Right-of-Use Asset 3,085 3344
Specific Provision Exchange Difference (188,708) (108.631)
Exchange Difference of NPL Terminations 192,076 129,062
Investment Fund Participation Certificates {23,246) -
Financial Loss ©** 319,060 -
(203,521) 133,316

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Retirement Pay Provision 1916 475
Unused Vacation Provision 242 83
Bonus Provision 860 435
Other Expense Provisions 27 25
[ncome Accruals for Finance Leases and Ongoing Leasing Contracts (57,257 (33.290)
Allowance for Doubtful Finance Lease Receivables 201,818 140,489
Derivatives (3.062) 15,555
General Provisions for Finance Lease Receivables 1,157 .
Financial Instrument Valuation Differences 138 21
Tax Base Differences in Property, Plant and Equipment (271.921) (105,964}
Doubtful Lease Receivables Exchange Difference - 47t
Prepaid Interest 213 140
Correction Regarding the Securities Commission (132) (326)
Letter of Guarantee Commission (448) (140)
Right-of-Use Asset 773 769
Specific Provision Exchange Difference (47,177) (24,934)
Exchange Difference of NPL Terminations 48,019 29,684
Investment Fund Participation Certificates (5.811) -
Financial Loss ** 79,765 -
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) (Net) (50,880) 23,443

) The corporate tax and deferred tax rate applicable for 31 December 2022 are applied as 25%.

**} As of 31 December 2022, deferred tax asset amounting to TL 79,765 has been made over the financial loss amounting to TL 319,061 in the

current period.
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16.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax asset/ (liability) movement is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Opening Balance as of | January 23,443 (24,818)
Opening balance restated as of 1 January - 45,500
Deferred taxes accounted in under equity (1,274) (5,078)
~ Cash flow hedge accounting (2,258} (5.070)
~ Severance provision 984 (8)
Deferred Tax Income / (Loss) (73,049) (16,979
Clnsing Balance as of 31 December (50,880) 23,443

17.  Provisions

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Provision for Employee Rights Obligation 12,075 4,316
Provision for Litigation 8,994 5,827
Other Provisions (*) 26,301 20,314

47,370 30,457

{*} Provisions for incentive penalties consist of provisions for general administrative expenses and other provisions.
»  Provision for employee rights obligation

The Company has calculated and accounted for the employee benefils provision in its financial statements in
accordance with actuarial valuation methods stated in TAS 19.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Discount Rate 1.91% 5.08%
Interest Rate 21,83% 24.00%
Estimated increase rate of salaries/retirement pay ceiling 19.55% 18.00%
Employee Benefits Provision 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Retirement Pay Provision 7,666 2,063
Unused Vacation Provision 967 363
Bonus Provision 3,442 1,890

12,075 4316
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17.  Provisions (continued)

Provision for Severance Pay 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Beginning of the Year 2,063 1,740
Service Cost 269 211
Intetest cost 495 216
Actuarial Loss 3,973 97
Historical Service Cost 1,148 -
Payments made during the period (-) (282) 2N
End of the Period 7,666 2,063
Bonus Provision 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Beginning of the year 1,890 -
Additional provision 4,199 2,581
Bonus Paid (2,647) {691)
End of the Period 3,442 1,890
Unused Vacation Provision 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Beginning of the year 363 175
Allowance paid (96) (n
Additional provision 700 199
End of the Period 967 363

18. Current tax debt / (receivable)

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Corporate Tax Provision - 3.939
Prepaid Taxes (47,233) (49,787)
Corporate Tax Provision / (Receivable) (net) (47,233) (45,848)

19.  Paid-in capital and capital reserves

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, distribution of the share capital held based on shareholders and shares
is as follows.

Shareholders (%) 31 December 2022
Denizbank A.S. 99.99 317,000
Derya Kumru <l <1
Ali Murat Dizdar <] <1
Mehmet Aydogdu <1 <1
Tanju Kaya <l <]
100 317,000

" As of 25 May 2022, it has been decided to accept the transfer of 1 share with a nominal value of TL 1, owned by Hayri Cansever, to
Mehmet Aydogdu.
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19.  Paid-in capital and capital reserves (continued)

Shareholders (%) 31 December 2021
Denizbank A.S. 99.99 317,000
Derya Kumru <1 <]
Ali Murat Dizdar <] <l
Hayri Cansever <l <l
Tanju Kaya <] <l
100 317,000

(&) As of 21 January 2020, Denizbank AG, which has a 51% share of the Company, has transferred all of its shares to Denizbank AS. in
exchange for an amount of TL 645,888 equivalent to EUR 98,481,000

As of 31 December 2022, the Company’s paid-in-capital consists of 317,000,000 shares of TL 1 nominal each (31
December 2021: 317,000,000 shares of TL | nominal each).

There are no preferred stocks representing the share capital.

20. Profit reserves

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Legal Reserves 43,908 43,908
Extraordinary Reserves 490,345 729,246
Other Capital Reserves - -

534,253 773,154

The legal reserves consist of the first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum,
until the total reserve reaches 20% of the historical paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated after
the first legal reserve and dividends, at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash dividend distributions. Under the TCC,
the legal reserves can only be used to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50%
of paid-in share capital. At the ordinary general assembly meeting held on 25 March 2022, it has been decided that
TL 81,184, which is the profit for the year 2021, will be deducted from the prior year's loss arising from the change
in the accounting application, and the remaining TL 238,901 prior year's loss will be deducted from the extraordinary
reserve fund amounting to TL 729,246 and no profit distribution will be made.

21.  Prior years® profit or loss

Profit distribution

In accordance with the Law No. 5228 on “Amending Certain Tax Laws” published in the Official Gazette dated 31
July 2004 and numbered 25539, it has become possible for costs arising from inflation differences of equity items
occurring during the first adjustment of financial statements according to inflation and monitored in “Prior Years’
Profit/Loss” to be offset with accumulated losses occurring as a result of the adjustment or to be added to the capital
by corporate tax payers; and these transactions are not considered as profit distribution.

Inflation adjustments to issued capital and historical amount of extraordinary reserves can be used for in kind capital
increase, dividend distribution in cash or the net loss deduction. In case inflation adjustment to issued capital is used
as dividend distribution in cash, it is subject to corporation tax.

Per the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency, income associated with deferred tax assets shall not be
considered as cash or intemally generated source and accordingly such amounts taking part of net period profit shall
not be included in profit distribution and capital increase.

As of 31 December 2022, the Company has no deferred tax income from deferred tax assets (31 December 2021
None).
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22.  Foreign currency position

TL

31 December 2022 USD EUR CHF GBP JPY Other  Equivalent
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Central Bank 106 357 - - - 1 9231
Financial Assets Measured by Amontized Cost 80.547 182.351 - - - - 5.141239
Other Assets 7.428 14.467 - - - - 427.872
Total Assets 87.781 197.175 - - - 1 5578342
Funds Borrowed 15.804 128.286 - - - - 2.852.889
Other Provision - . . - . . .
Other Liabilities 9519 13.490 . - - - 441.029
Total Liabilities 25323 141.776 - - - - 3.293.918
Net Balance Sheet Position 62.458 55.399 - - - 1 2.284.424
OIF Batance Sheet Position {Derlvative) {51.000) {50.000) - - - - (1.950.358)
Net Foreign Currency Pesition (%) 11.458 5.399 - - - 1 334.066

{*) Includes foreign currency position arising from operating lease transactions of the Company.

TL

31 December 2021 usp EUR CHF GBP JPY Other ___Equivalent
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Central Bank 94 143 3 1 ] 1 3.386
Financial Assets Mecasured by Amortized Cost 77.836 151.099 - - - - 3.228.59]
Other Assets 4.080 27.642 - - - - 458.798
Total Assets 82.010 178.884 3 1 1 1 3.690.775
Funds Borrowed 48 55.030 - - - - 808.583
Other Provision - - - - - - -
Other Liabilities 5.519 9.585 - - - - 212,610
Total Liabilities 5.587 64.615 - - - - 1.021.193
Net Balance Sheet Positlon 76.423 114.269 3 1 1 1 2.669.582
OfT Balance Sheet Position {Derivative) (72.300) (128.800) - - - - (2.961.046)
Net Foreign Currency Position (*) 4.&3 {14.531) 3 1 1 ] {291.464)

(*) Includes foreign currency position arising from operating lease transactions of the Company.
23.  Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

As of 31 December 2022, TL 1,805,716 of letters of guarantee were given to customs authorities and banks (31 December
2021: TL 1,110,133).

As of 31 December 2022, total legal cases pending against the Company is TL 31,296 (31 December 2021: TL 26,296}

and the provision recognized in the accompanying financial statements for such legal cases is TL 8,993 (31 December
2021: TL 5,827).
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23, Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities (continued)

Derivative transactions:

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

o Currency Amount TL __ Currency Amount _TL
Forward Foreign Currency
Purchase Transaction: TL 1,965,995 1,965,995 2,845,600 2,845,600
1,965,995 1,965,995 2,845,600 2,845,600
Forward Foreign Currency
Sale Transaction: EURO 50,000 996,745 128,800 1,891,080
50,000 996,745 128,800 1,891,080
Forward Forcign Cumency
Sale Transaction: USD 51,000 953,613 77,300 1,001,161
51,000 953,613 77&00 1,001,161
Futures Sale Transactions: TL - - 66,805 66,805
- - 66,805 66,805
Futures Purchase Transactions: USD - 5,000 66,805
- - 5,000 66,805

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

TL TL

Maturity Analysis for Foreign Currency Sell Transactions:
Short-Term 1,965,995 2,912,405
Long-Term - -
1,965,995 2,912,405

Maturity Analysis for Foreign Currency Sell Transactions:
Short-Term 1,950,358 2,961,046
Long-Term . -
1,950,358 2,961,046
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24. Operating income

1 January-

31 December 2022

1 January-

_31 December 2021

Finance Lease Interest Income 717,757 359,485
Operating Lease Income 379,117 210,832
1,096,874 570,317

25.  Operating expenses
1 January- 1 January-

Operational Lease Expenses (163,046) (60,793)
Personnel Expenses (33,331 16,127y
Other General Administrative Expenses (23411) (15,947)
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses {10,706) (8,271)
Consultancy Expenses (934) (572)
Information Technology Expenses (648) (793)
Severance Pay Provision (1,630) (405)
Travel and Vehicle Expenses (531) (219)
(234,237) (103,127)

26.  Other operating income
1 January - I January -

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Foreign Exchange Gains 2,792,333 2,488,286
Gain on Derivative Instruments 162,384 501,762
Collections from NPLs 149,847 -
Capital Market Transactions Profit 23,246 -
Insurance Commission Income 7,085 -
Interest Received from Securities 125 4,205
Interest from Banks 96 1,331
Income from the Sale of Assets 264,763 65,825
Other 93,950 46,050

3,693,829 3,107,459
27. Finance expenses

1 January- I January -

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Interest Expenses (727,562) (258,321)
Interest Expense on Marketable Securities Issued (254,301) (144,909)
Fees and Commissions Paid (27,258) (15,855)
Other (4,101) (2,765)

(1,013,222) (421,850)
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28. Provision for Expected Loss

1 January — 31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total
Provision for Expected Loss (22,282) (180,257) (67,361) (269,900)
(22,282) (180,257) (67,361) (269,900)

1 January — 31 December 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Provision for Expected Loss (33,512) (152,288) {161,134) (346,934)
(33,512) (152,288) (161,134) (346,934)

29,  Fees for services received from independent auditor/Independent audit firm

The fee information for the reporting period regarding the services received from independent auditors or
independent audit firms in accordance with the decision of the POA dated 26 March 2021 is given in the table

below.

1 January -
31 December 2022

1 January -
31 December 2021

Independent audit fee (574) {(150)
Tax consultancy fee - -
Other assurance services fee - .
Other non-audit assurance services - -
(574) {150)

30. Other operating expenses
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Foreign Exchange Losses (2,041,308) {1,685,832)
Losses from Derivative Instruments (460,986) (1,007,847)
Other (30,492) (10,084)

(2,532,786) {2,703,763)
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31,  Taxation

1 January - 1 January -

Tax Provision 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Corporate Tax Provision (4,447) (3,939)
Deferred Tax Income / (Expenses) (73,049 (16,979)
(77,496) (20,918)

Reconciliation of tax expense with the net income for the year is as follows:

1 January- 1 January -

Tax Provision 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Pre-tax profit 740,558 102,102
Tax rate 25% 25%
Tax effect (185,139} (25,526)
Non-deductible expenses and deductions (net) (*) 107,643 4,608

{77,496) (20,918)

(*) Asof 3] December 2022, deferred 1ax asset amounting to TL 79,765 was created over the financial loss amounting to TL 319,061 in the
current period.

Corporate Tax

The Company is subject to the tax legislation and practices of the countries in which they operate.

The companies apply 25% (31 December 2021: 25%) tax rate over their quarterly profits when calculating their
temporary tax payables, which they are obliged declare via advance corporate tax declaration by the end 14th and pay
by the end of 17th of the 2°¢ month following the related period. Quarterly Advance Corporate Tax payments made
within a year are deducted from the corporate income tax calculated for the same fiscal year. Following the netting-
off, if there is remaining advance corporate tax balance, it can be offset or can be received in the form of cash refund.

With the Law No. 7394 on Evaluation of Immovable Property Owned by the Treasury and Amending the Value Added
Tax Law, which was published in the Official Gazette dated Aptil 15, 2022 and numbered 31810 and With the
paragraph added 1o the Article 26 of the Law on Amending Certain Laws and Decrees with the Force of Law and the
temporary article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law No. 5520, it has been determined that the Corporate Tax rate will be
restated as 25% for the corporate earnings of the 2022 taxation period.

With this amendment, 25% rate is valid for the taxation of corporate eamings for the periods starting from 1 January
2022, starting with the declarations that must be submitted as of 1 July 2022.

According to the Corporate Tax Law, financial losses shown on the declaration can be deducted from the corporate
income tax base of up to next 5 years. Declarations and related accounting records can be examined by the tax office

within up to next 5 years.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or resident corporations are
not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, 15% withholding tax rate is applied to dividends paid.

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a consolidated tax return.
Therefore, tax liabilities, as reflected in these financial statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Income Withholding Tax
In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds surcharge on any

dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are resident companies in Turkey and Turkish
branches of foreign companies.
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31. Taxation {continued)

Income Withholding Tax fcontinued)

The rate of income withholding tax is 10% starting from 24 April 2003 by the end of 22 July 2006. However, this rate
was changed to 15% commencing from 22 July 2006 upon the order no: 2006/10731 of the Council of Ministers.
Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding taxes.

Withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to investment incentive certificates
obtained prior to 24 April 2003. Subsequent to this date, the investments without investment incentive certificates do not
qualify for tax allowance.

32. Earnings per share

The Company's shares are not traded in the stock exchange, therefore, eamings per share have not been calculated in
the accompanying financial statements.

33.  Other issues that significantly affect the financial statements or other issues required for the clear
understanding of financial statements issues

None.

34, Additional information sbout financial instruments

(a)  Capital Risk Management

In accordance with Article 12 of the “Regulation on Establishment and Operation Principles of Financial leasing,
Factoring and Financing Companies” published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013, the Company is

required to keep its equity in accordance with the standard set out in the regulation.

The Company manages its capital by sustaining its status as a going concern while maximizing the retum to stakeholders
through the optimization of the debt and the equity balance.

(b) Significant Accounting Policies

The Company’s significant accounting policies on the financial instruments are disclosed in Note 3 “Summary of
valuation principles/ significant accounting policies”.

{c)  Financial Instruments

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Financial assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Central Bank 13,363 4,314
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit/Loss 473,246 -
Derivative Financial Assets 83,863 44,490
Financial Assets Measured by Amortized Cost 7,280,275 4,273,018

Financial Liabilities:

Derivative Financial Liabilities (11,336) (112,121
Other Liabilities (*) (645,136) (310,181)
Funds Borrowed (6,969,809) (3,826,663)
Issued Securities (1,941,141) (928,120)

(*)  Taxes and liabilities amounting 10 TL 6,984, which are included in other liabilities, are not included in this table (31 December 2021: TL
826).
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34. Additional information about financial instruments (continued)

(d)  Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company’s corporate treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates access to domestic and
international markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through
internal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risk. Such risks include market risk
(including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company uses derivative instruments to minimize the effects of such risks and it also uses such instruments for
hedging. The Company does not trade financial instruments (including derivative financial instruments) for
speculative purposes and does not have any activity related to the purchase and sale of such vehicles.

In order to minimize potential risks, the Company reports monthly to the risk management committee which is in
charge of monitoring risks and the policies applied.

(e)  Market Risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates (refer to section
f) and interest rates (refer to section g). To manage risks relating to exchange rates and interest rates, the Company
uses various derivative financial instruments including the below:

- “Forward foreign currency contracts” to hedge the exchange rate risk arising from operations and
- “Currency swaps” to contro] the exchange rate risk of foreign currency denominated liabilities,

At the company level, market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change in the Company’s exposure to market risk or the method it uses to manage and measure
such risks in the current year.

(f)  Foreign Currency Risk Management

Foreign currency risks result from foreign currency transactions. The Company manages its foreign currency risk
arising from its operations and cash flows of finance contracts by using the “forward foreign currency contracts”.

The Company’s assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed in Note 22.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Exchange rate risks which the Company is exposed to are summarized in the below table.

The table below indicates the sensitivity of the Company to USD, EUR and other foreign currencies when there is a
10% of change in such exchange rates. The Company use 10% of rate change when it reports its foreign currency risk
to the top management and this rate represents the top management’s expectation on the exchange rate fluctuations.
Sensitivity analyses made in relation to the Company’s exposure to foreign currency at the reporting period is
determined based on the fluctuations at the beginning of the fiscal year and the analyses are fixed during the reporting
period. Positive amount refers to an increase profit/loss.

Exchange rate information used by the Company as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
USD 18.6983 129775
EUR 19.9349 14.6823
CHF 20.2019 14.1207
GBP 22.4892 17.4530
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34. Additional information about financial instruments (continued)

Foreign Currency Sensitivity (continued)

31 December 2022

Gain / Loss Shareholders’ Equity
Depreciation Appreciation Depreciation
Appreciation of of of of
foreign foreign foreign foreign
currency currency currency currency
| - Net USD asset/liability 116,786 {116,786) - -
2 - USD hedging (-) (95,361) 95,361 - -
3 - USD, net effect (1+2) 21,425 (21,425) - -
4 - Net EUR asset/liability 110,437 (110.437) - -
5 - EUR hedging {-) (99.675) 99,675 - -
6 — EUR, net effect (4+5) 10,763 (10,763) - -
TOTAL {3 + 6) 32,188 (32,188} - -

31 December 2021
Gain / Loss Shareholders® Equity

Depreciation Appreciation Depreciation

Appreciation of of of of

foreign foreign foreign foreign

currency currency currency currency

1 - Net USD asset/liability 99,178 (99.178) - -
2 - USD hedging (-} (93.827) 93,827 - -
3 - USD, net effect (1+2) 5,351 (5.351) - -
4 — Net EUR asset/liability 167,773 (167,773) - -
5 — EUR hedging (-) (189,108) 189,108 - -
6 - EUR, net effect (4+5) (21,335) 21,335 - -
TOTAL (3 + 6) (15,984) 15,984 - -

Futures exchange contracts and foreign currency swaps

The Company conducts forward exchange rate contracts and foreign exchange swaps in order to meet the risks arising
from payments and collections in certain foreign currencies and expected sales and purchases.

As of 31 December 2022, there is an unrealized net loss of TL 12,246 (31 December 2021: profit of TL 67,631), which
consists of changes in the fair value of the forward exchange rate contracts.
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34.  Additional information about financial instruments {continued)
(g)  Interest Rate Risk Management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risks as the Company borrows at both fixed and floating rates. Such risk is
covered and controlled by making proper classification between fixed and floating rate liabilities,

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity analysis below is based on the Company’s exposure 1o interes rate risks at the reporting
period and estimated interest rate fluctuations at the beginning of the fiscal year and is fixed during the reporting
period. The Company management makes its sensitivity analysis based on a 100-basis point interest rate fluctuation
scenario. This rate is also used in top management reporting.

Interest Position Table

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Fixed Rate Financtal Instruments
Financial Assets:

Time Deposits - -
Finance Lease Receivables 7,136,885 3,931,086
Financial Liabilities:

Funds Borrowed 5,400,405 3,756,195
Marketable Securities Issued 1,941,141 928,120

Floating rate financial instruments
Financial Assets: ’
Finance Lease Receivables 116,720 334,804

Financial Liabilities:
Funds Borrowed 1,569,404 70,468

Marketable Securities Issued - -

If interest rates were 100 basis points higher at the balance sheet date and all other variables were held constant:

The Company’s interest income from floating rate finance lease contracts would increase by TL 1,167 (31 December
2021: TL 3,34R).

The Company’s interest expense on floating rate borrowings would increase by TL 15,694 (31 December 2021: TL
705).

(h}  Credit Risk Management

Credit risks refer to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral where appropriate, by means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company's
exposure to credit risks and credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored on a continuous basis. Credit exposure
is controlled by counterparty limits that are set by the Board of Directors.

Finance lease receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.
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34. Additional information about financial instruments (continued)
(0] Liquidity Risk Management

The Company management has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company
manages its liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and borrowing facilities by constantly monitoring
forecasts and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity Risk Table

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets and liabilities.
The tables below have been drawn up based on the earliest probable maturities of the financial assets and liabilities,
Interest amounts to be collected and disbursed on the Company’s assets and liabilities have also been included in
the table below.
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Deniz Finansal Kiralama A.§.

Notes to the financial statements as of 31 December 2022
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {“TL"} unless otherwise stated.}

34. Additional information about financial instruments (continued)
{(k}  Fair Value Level of Financial Instruments

Fair value levels as of 31 December 2022

Financial Instruments 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivative financial assets/(liabilities), net 72,527 - 72,527 -

Fair value levels as of 31 December 2021

Financial Instruments 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivative financial assets/(liabilities), net (67.631) - (67,631) -
Level 1 :Implies that in determining the fair values of assets and liabilities, active market trading price is used for
valuation purposes.

Level 2 :Implies that in determining the fair values of assets and liabilities, should other market price be observed
other than first degree market prices, then observed market price is used for valuation purposes.

Level 3 :Implies that in determining the fair values of assets and liabilities, data not based on market observation is

used for valuation purposes.

35. Subsequent events
It has been stated that a state of emergency has been declared in 10 provinces in the region due to the problems caused by

the earthquakes in Kahramanmaras, affecting many of our provinces and devastating our whole country. The developments
regarding the natural disaster are being closely monitored and works are continuing to determine the situation.
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